
 
COMMISSIONERS: TO ASSIST IN ESTABLISHING QUORUMS REQUIRED TO CONDUCT MEETINGS,  

PLEASE CONTACT THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND A SCHEDULED MEETING.  
2024_03-25 Ellington Planning & Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda   

 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

MONDAY, MARCH 25, 2024, 7:00 PM 
IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT 

REMOTE ATTENDANCE: ZOOM MEETING, INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BELOW 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER: 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS: (On non-agenda items) 

III. PUBLIC HEARING(S): (Notice requirements met, hearing may commence.) 
1. Z202403 – West Meadow Associates, LLC, owner/applicant, request for Site Plan Approval to 

relocate and widen driveway access at 106 West Road, APN 028-011-0000, and create shared 
access with 100 West Road, APN 028-010-0000, in the Commercial (C) and Planned 
Commercial (PC) Zones. 
 

2. Z202404 – Fifty (50) West Road, LLC, owner/applicant, request for Special Permit Uses 
Pursuant to Zoning Regulations 4.1 and 4.1.1 as listed in Narrative dated February 22, 2024, 
and Site Plan Approval to construct three buildings, fenced outside storage, parking, stormwater 
management system, access over a portion of 43 Lower Butcher Road, and related site 
improvements to the rear of 50 West Road within the Industrial (I) Zone, APN 019-005-0000, a 
property zoned Industrial (I) and C (Commercial) Zones. 

 
IV. OLD BUSINESS:  None 
V.      NEW BUSINESS: 
VI. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 

1.  Approval of the February 26, 2024, Regular Meeting Minutes. 
2.  Correspondence/Discussion: 

a. Request from Gardner & Peterson for informal discussion to allow construction of rental 
units for special tradesmen space (currently only permitted by special permit in industrial 
zones) and review of conceptual site plan for 3 Jobs Hill Road, APN 072-003-0000, a 
property in the Planned Commercial (PC) Zone.  

 
b. Notice of Violation, dated March 7, 2024, Gondal Corporation (The Road Runners), 

owner, 83 West Road, for violation of the Ellington Zoning Regulations for electronic 
signs displaying fuel prices on dispenser pumps. 

 
VII.    ADJOURNMENT:  

Next Regular Meeting is scheduled for April 22, 2024. 
Instructions to attend remotely via Zoom Meeting listed below. The agenda is posted on the Town of Ellington 
webpage (www.ellington-ct.gov) under Agenda & Minutes, Planning & Zoning Commission. 
Join Zoom Meeting via link:    Join Zoom Meeting by phone: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84465303856  1-646-558-8656 US (New York) 
Meeting ID: 844 6530 3856    Meeting ID: 844 6530 3856 
Passcode: 260779     Passcode: 260779 

 

 
STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 

INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 
TEL. (860) 870-3120        TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE       FAX (860) 870-3122 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84465303856
http://www.ellington-ct.gov/




Prior Owner History

Location:

Owner Of Record

Map Id: Zone:

Card No:

Last Update:

Census/Tract

Dev Map ID

Assessment History (Prior Years as of Oct 1)

Volume/Page Date Sale Price

Permit Number Date Permit Description

Land

Building

Outbuilding

Total

Total Land Value

Total Building Value

Total Outbldg Value

Total Market Value

Sales Type Valid

Appraised Value

Comments

State Item Codes

Information may be deemed reliable, but not guaranteed.

Acres

490 Appraised Totals

Unique ID:

Date Printed:

Code Quantity Value

Neighborhood:

Land Type Acres 490 Total Value

Total

Exempt

Supplemental Data

Type Acres Value Type Acres Value

Totals
Application Date: Expiration Date:

Utilities

Revaluation Date:

GIS ID

Route

District

2/28/2024

2020

No

21-Commercial Land

106 WEST RD

29 GAIL DR, ELLINGTON, CT 06029

C120

84,080

22203

Survey Map

0149/0840

217,370

2/28/2024

3,0801.00

120,120

120,120

028 011 0000 PC

130,210130,210 130,210

BD0098

0

00143700

0.00

0.00

2023

KLOTER JUDITH
SPIELMAN FLORA E

84,080

0258/0605SPIELMAN JUDITH

120,000

1700

186,010

0.02

3,0803,080 3,0803,080

0149/0845 5/22/1987
5/22/1987

0

84,080 84,080 84,080

No

217,370 217,370217,370

37336

84,080

25-Commercial Outbuilding

22-Commercial Building0.00

1 Of 1

1.00

C

0

4/10/2012
9/2/2002
9/4/2001
11/14/1997
6/8/1994

10/1/2015

Assessor Map

12/22/1999

13515

0.92

Sub Div
028

310,530

5351

217,370

2024

130,210

0.9400

2021

Zone 2

120 0.94

0

4,400

16931

Warranty Deed
Warranty Deed

3,080

Sewer, Public Water

VisionPID

Primary Site

130,210

0.00

Quit Claim

Commercial Excess

No

Ellington

130,210

REPLACE 3 WINDOWS

BD-2003-0098-40 X 120 TENT
TEMP TENT

REROOF.

2022



Building Use

Percent Complete

Class
Overall Condition

Construction Quality

Year Built

Basement Area

Heating Type

Fuel Type
Cooling Type

Detached Component  Computations

Commercial Building Description

Basement

HVAC

Interior
Floors
Walls

Stories

Wall Height
Exterior

Exterior Walls

Roof Type

Year Area/Qty

Attached Component Computations

Type Area/Qty

Unique ID:

Location:

Type Type Year Area/Qty

Special Features

Description Area/Qty

Yr Blt

Condition Condition

GLA

Unit

Remodel

Roof Cover

Information may be deemed reliable, but not guaranteed. 

100

Carpet

106 WEST RD

2024

110

Hot Water

1917

1012

Office

Central

2024
1012

2024

1917

1917

1917

Oil

Vinyl Siding

Paving

Base Value

Unfinished Basement Area
Central Air

B
2.00

100

Open Porch
Unfinished Attic

Open Porch

00143700

Average

264

Very Good

4400

Asphalt

Drywall

Gable

Ellington

1950

Wood Frame



100 & 106 West Road - GIS Map - Zoning View 

 

 

100 & 106 West Road – GIS Map – Satellite View 

 

 



Section 6.6 Access Management (Effective 
4/1/2021)________________________________________________ 

 

A. Purpose Traffic flow and roadway safety can be significantly reduced by the proliferation of 
access points and intersections along roadways.  Access management is a technique used 
to promote safe movement of vehicles, smooth flow of traffic, preserve the capacity of 
roadways, reduce vehicular congestion and conflicts, and improve pedestrian and bicyclist 
safety especially along heavily trafficked roads and state highways.   

B. Intent This regulation is intended to control the number, size and location of access points, 
and the distance between access points, intersections and traffic signals, and require the 
use of shared access points and interconnections between abutting properties where 
feasible while allowing proper and adequate access to and from parcels. 

C. Applicability As determined by the commission or its agent, this regulation shall apply to 
Designed Multi-Family developments, division of land into two or more parcels, commercial 
and industrial developments, and modifications thereto along arterial and collector streets 
listed in Section 2.1.10 Highway Clearance Setback, (except for Hopkins Road) and along 
Lower Butcher Road, Tomoka Avenue and Meadow Brook Road.  

4. General The commission may require an applicant or owner to: 

1. Provide a traffic impact analysis, prepared by a professional engineer licensed in 
Connecticut, containing sufficient details based upon both existing levels of 
development and projected build out levels of development to review: 

a. The number and location of necessary access points; 
b. The nature and type of traffic circulation to and from premises and adjacent 

properties; 
c. The relationship of new access points to adjacent properties, roadways, 

intersections and traffic signals; 
d. Interconnections between properties, parking layouts and internal traffic 

circulation; 
e. A site layout depicting the parcel and adjacent parcels depicting roadways 

and access points; and, 
f. Other information requested by the commission. 

2. Close an existing access point or eliminate a proposed access point. 

3. Establish or use a shared access point and/or interconnection between properties 
in a location acceptable to the commission and record an easement on the land 
records if one does not already exist, defining construction and maintenance 
responsibility in favor of the abutting property and/or the Town of Ellington in a form 
acceptable to the town attorney. 

5. The commission may be guided by the Interior Access Concept Plan for Route 83, as may be 
amended, when considering access management techniques for properties along Route 
83. 



 

 







Planning & Zoning Applications - Narrative February 22, 2024 

Fifty (50) West Road, LLC – 50 West Road (APN 019-005-0000) 

 

PZC Narrative  Page 1 

Narrative: 

1. Description: 
 
Application before the Ellington Planning & Zoning Commission include:  

a. Site Plan & Special Permit   

The proposal includes development of the rear portion of the parcel (portion in 
the Industrial Zone) to facilitate the construction of three buildings and 
associated site improvements.  Two of the buildings are design with fifteen 
units each with at-grade overhead door access in the rear and man-door 
access in the front.  One of the buildings is designed with at-grade overhead 
door access and man-door access in the front and a 4-foot depressed loading 
dock with overhead doors in the rear.  Access to the site is proposed from 
Lower Butcher Road, on the abutting parcel.  An access and utility easement 
will be granted from the adjacent owner.   
 
The proposal is in substantial conformance with the Master Plan submitted 
and approved as part of the Zone Change Request (Z202315) granted on 
June 26, 2023.  The proposed improvements under this request include only 
development of the rear portion of the parcel only, within the Industrial Zone.  
The development of the front outparcel (retail, office and restaurant within the 
Commercial Zone) is not part of the current proposal.  
 
The proposed improvements are located in the I Zone, which allows, as 
permitted uses (Section 4.1) Warehousing, Storage, plumbing Shops, 
Carpenter Shops, Office Uses, and Other Similar uses, as approved by the 
Commission (Section 4.1.1).  The Applicant is requesting the following similar 
uses: 

 Other tradesmen shops (i.e. HVAC, Electrician, Floor Installer, Roof 
Installer, Landscape Contractor, etc.) 

 The regulations also allow for other uses, by Special Permit.  The Applicant is 
requesting Special Permit approval for the following uses listed in Section 4.1: 

 Plumbing and Heating: Sales, Service and Storage 

 Retail Business 

 Wholesale Business 

 Storage Yard for new lumber, Building Materials and related items.  
Business Office 

 Warehousing, Storage 

 Storage yard for building materials    



Planning & Zoning Applications - Narrative February 22, 2024 

Fifty (50) West Road, LLC – 50 West Road (APN 019-005-0000) 

 

PZC Narrative  Page 2 

The regulations also allow for other similar uses, by Special Permit, as 
approved by the Commission (Sec. 4.1.1).  The Applicant is requesting 
approval by Special Permit, of the following similar uses: 

 Storage Yard for Landscape Contractors  

 Other Trades Sales, Service and Storage  

 

2. Stormwater Management 
 
The parcel will be served by conventional storm drain systems comprised of 
catch basins, manholes and culverts.  Runoff will be collected by these 
systems and discharged into stormwater quality basins constructed on the 
western portion of the parcel.  The basin has been sized to handle runoff from 
the ultimate developed parcel (i.e., per recognized Master Plan), as well as a 
significant portion of the Moser parcel to the north.   The stormwater quality 
basin was sized to both mitigate peak rates of runoff and treat the minimum 
CT DEEP-recommended water quality volume for the ultimate developed 
condition of the parcel and including the future development of the Moser 
parcel to the north.   The outflow from the basins will be discharged into the 
Hockanum River, at the western limits of the development parcel.   
 
A comprehensive Stormwater Management Report (SMR) is provided with the 
application materials to demonstrate the basins and associated controls are 
designed for the ultimate developed condition of the subject parcel, and for the 
future development of a significant portion of the Moser parcel to the north.   
 
The SMR includes a pipe-to-pipe hydraulic analysis to demonstrate the storm 
drain systems proposed to handle on-site runoff comply with the town’s 
requirements and accounts for additional future development of the subject 
parcel in conformance with the approved Master Plan.  
 

3. Erosion Control Measures  
 
Proposed sediment and erosion control measures will follow the guidelines 
established in the 2002 Connecticut Guidelines for Soil Erosion and Sediment 
Control (Guidelines).  The measures include, but are not limited to the use of 
silt fence erosion control in areas downgradient of earthen activities, rip rap 
protection on all stormwater system outlets, a construction exit, erosion control 
blankets on steep slopes, stabilizing vegetation, use of vegetative swales to 
direct runoff and the use of sediment logs (coirs) in the vegetated swales to 
reduce erosion until the swales are stabilized, etc.  The proposed measures 
are depicted on the Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Plan and related 
details are shown on the Detail Sheets.  



Planning & Zoning Applications - Narrative February 22, 2024 

Fifty (50) West Road, LLC – 50 West Road (APN 019-005-0000) 

 

PZC Narrative  Page 3 

4. Construction Methods/Sequence: 
 

Methods of construction will include those typical of site development using heavy 
and light equipment by skilled operators and hand tools and manual labor for: 
installation of erosion control devises, construction of temporary sediment control 
measures, stripping and stockpiling of topsoil, rough grading of site, construction of 
storm drainage systems, construction of pavement subgrades and processed base 
courses and gravel drives, construction of building foundations and structure, 
construction of concrete sidewalks, pads and curbing, placement of bituminous 
pavement section and curbing, installation of plantings and establishment of 
stabilizing vegetation, pavement markings and signage.  
 
It is anticipated that construction would begin in the spring of 2024 and be 
completed in the spring of 2025.  
  
During construction stormwater would be controlled by directing runoff into the 
water quality basin where additional temporary measures would be employed to 
settle/filter sediments.   As the site becomes stabilized, accumulated sediments 
would be removed from the basin forebay and restoration of water quality basin 
would be completed, as required. Once all disturbed areas are adequately 
vegetated, the temporary erosion control devices would be removed.   
 
Equipment used would include excavators, dozers, dump trucks, water trucks, skid 
steers, compactors, graders, etc.  

 
Standards for Granting Special Permit: 
 
1. The location and size of the proposed structures and intensity of the use in relation to 
the size of the lot will be in harmony with the orderly development of the area and 
compatible with other existing uses.  
 
The location and size of the proposed building are in harmony with buildings in the area 
in total size and in relative size to the lot area.  The operation/use is in harmony with 
area buildings which include a mix of industrial, commercial, retail and similar uses.  
 
2. The kind, size and height of the structures on the lot will not hinder or discourage the 
appropriate use of adjoining property or diminish the value thereof.  
 
The proposes structure meets the minimum setback requirements for the zone and falls 
within the maximum height requirement for the zone and is in harmony with other 
buildings in the area in size, height, and relative lot coverage.  The buildings are quite 
attractive and will not hinder or discourage use of adjoining property or hinder the value 
therefore.   
 



Planning & Zoning Applications - Narrative February 22, 2024 

Fifty (50) West Road, LLC – 50 West Road (APN 019-005-0000) 

 

PZC Narrative  Page 4 

3. The proposed use will not adversely alter the essential characteristics of the area or 
adversely affect the property value of the neighborhood.  
 
The proposed use is in harmony with other uses in the area and will not adversely alter 
the essential characteristics of the area nor adversely affect the property values of the 
neighborhood.  
 
4. The parking facilities will be adequate and properly located, and the entrance/exit 
driveways are laid out to achieve maximum safety, and the existing public roadways are 
adequate in width and condition to handle future traffic.  
 
The proposed parking facilities comply with town standards and provide for a total 
number of spaces that meet the minimum required parking for the use.  The access 
drive is proposed off Lower Butcher Road, at a location where plenty of sight distance is 
provided for egress.  Adequate width is provided to handle traffic conditions of the 
ultimate developed condition of the site as approved in the Master Plan. 
 
5. The proposed plans provide for the conservation of natural features, drainage basins 
and the protection of the environment of the area. 
 
The proposed plans provide for management of stormwater to protect adjacent and 
downgradient resources, including natural features.  The water quality basins will 
capture all runoff from the developed area and treat well in excess of the minimum 
DEEP-recommended water quality volume of runoff prior to its release, thereby 
protecting the environment of the area and drainage basin into which the site 
discharges.  The basins are proposed in an area that is currently dominated by 
agricultural use. Following development of the basins, the adjacent areas between the 
basin and wetlands adjacent to the Hockanum River will be planted in conservation 
seed mix and allowed to go fallow.  
 
6. The physical design elements of the proposed development including road patterns 
shall be attractive and suitable in relation to the site's characteristics and the style of 
other buildings and development in the immediate area.  
 
The layout and physical design of the driveway, parking areas and building placement 
are attractive and in harmony with similar uses in the area.   
 
7. The proposed building materials and other design aspects of the building’s 
architecture, together with proposed landscaping, lighting, and signage, are appropriate 
with respect to the surrounding neighborhood.  
 
The proposed building incorporates handsome architectural features above and beyond 
most buildings in the area. The site will incorporate landscape features that offer 
screening of loading and storage areas and provide shade in parking areas and along 



Planning & Zoning Applications - Narrative February 22, 2024 

Fifty (50) West Road, LLC – 50 West Road (APN 019-005-0000) 

 

PZC Narrative  Page 5 

the driveway.  The landscaping is in harmony with similar area developments.  The 
proposal incorporated street trees that match those of similar development along West 
Road.  
 
Site lighting design will incorporate building wall pack downlighting to minimize off-site 
trespass while providing adequate lighting to safely illuminate parking areas, an on-site  
access drives and walkways.  
  
8. The proposed use will not have any detrimental effect on public health, safety, 
convenience and property values.  
 
The proposed use will incorporate attractive buildings and well-landscaped parking 
areas.  Stormwater runoff from the development will be treated in large water quality 
basins.  Access to and from the site is designed to meet or exceed traffic safety 
standards.  The proposal will not have a detrimental effect on public health, safety, 
convenience nor property values.   
 
9. The proposed use shall have easy accessibility for fire apparatus, ambulances and 
police vehicles. The Commission may require to have constructed to Town 
specifications certain thoroughfares in the development for such purposes.  
 
Driveways, access to the building, and internal access and circulation within parking 
areas are designed to provide the minimum widths and turning radii to provide easy 
accessibility for fire, police, ambulances and other emergency vehicles.  The driveway 
and parking areas are proposed to be paved surfaces.  
 
10. There are adequate utilities, including water supply and sewerage disposal, to 
support the proposed use. 
 
The facility will be served by sanitary sewer.  The Ellington WPCA has granted an 
allocation to the parcel sufficient to meet the facility needs. Sewage will be discharged 
to the sanitary sewer along the parcel’s north boundary.  Connecticut Water Company 
has a water main on Lower Butcher Road and this main has capacity to meet the needs 
of the development.  Eversource has adequate gas and electric service in both West 
Road and Lower Butcher Road, sufficient to serve the facility.  There is adequate 
telephone/cable/communications service along both West Road and Lower Butcher 
Road. 



 
 
 

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 
 

Proposed Industrial/Commercial Development 
50 West Road 
Ellington, CT 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared For: 
 

Fifty (50) West Road, LLC 
 
 
 

Prepared By: 
 

F. A. Hesketh & Associates, Inc. 
6 Creamery Brook 

East Granby, CT  06026 
 

 
 
 
 
 

February 2, 2024 
Revised February 22, 2024 

 
 

 



Storm Water Management Report Page 1 2/02/24 (rev. 2/22/24) 
 

 
1. Introduction 
 
This storm water management report has been prepared to demonstrate that the storm water 
management practices for the proposed commercial/retail development meet the requirements 
of Town of Ellington Zoning Regulations, follow sound engineering practices, and protect 
adjacent landowners from adverse storm water impacts.   
 
This report presents hydrologic analysis of both pre- and post-developed conditions to 
demonstrate that the development of the parcel will not result in a net increase in peak rate of 
discharge of runoff from the development.    
 
This report also presents a detailed pipe to pipe design analysis to demonstrate that the 
proposed storm drain systems have adequate capacity to convey runoff for a 10-year return-
period storm event.       
 
2. Project Description 
 
The proposed development site is comprised of a 25.91-acre parcel located on the west side 
of West Road (Route 83) across just south of the Natural Country Farms parcel located on the 
southwest corner of the intersection of Lower Butcher Road and West Road.  The site is vacant 
and is currently in agricultural use.  Residential uses are located to the east, and industrial uses 
are located to the north, south and west. The Hockanum River is situated about 100 feet south 
and parallel to the southern boundary of the western half of the parcel.  
 
The proposal includes developing the eastern half of the site with a mix of industrial and 
commercial uses, including a restaurant, three commercial/retail buildings, and three industrial 
buildings.  Access to the site is proposed from both West Road and Lower Butcher Road (via 
an easement on an adjacent parcel).  Retail/commercial buildings are proposed along the 
frontage of West Road. Industrial buildings are proposed to the west of the commercial 
buildings.  The western half of the site will be utilized for stormwater management facilities.   
 
Four new storm drain collection and conveyance systems are proposed for the development.  
Two of these systems (System #1 and System #2) are designed to collect stormwater runoff 
from a majority of the developed areas on the eastern half of the parcel and convey it to the 
water quality basins proposed on the western half of the site.  Another system (System #3) is 
designed to collect runoff discharging from the CT DOT drainage system at the southeast 
corner of the site and convey north, to its current point of discharge from the parcel along the 
parcel’s northern boundary.  This DOT drainage system drains runoff from an approximate 14-
acre watershed that includes West Road and areas to the east of West Road.  Currently runoff 
from the DOT drainage system enters the site and flows north through the site to an inlet culvert 
located on the Natural Country Farms site for discharge north of Lower Butcher Road.  System 
#3 will preserve this existing flow path.  Storm Drain System #4 is proposed to convey runoff 
from an approximate 2-acre developed portion of the northeast corner of the site and to 
discharge the runoff to the north to the existing inlet culvert located on the Natural Country 
Farms site, where runoff from this area currently flows.  The storm drain systems will consist 
of catch basins, manholes, culverts and a flared-end outlet.  



 
Storm Water Management Report Page 2 2/02/24 (rev. 2/22/24) 

 
In addition to the on-site flow conveyed by Storm Drain Systems #1 and #2, the proposed water 
quality basins have been sized to handle the flow from future development of an additional 
15.5-acre portion of the adjacent parcel to the north (43 Lower Butcher Road, the Moser 
parcel).  The water quality basins will be shared by both parcels under a common use and 
maintenance agreement.  
 
All runoff from both the 25.91-acre development parcel and the additional 15.5-acre portion of 
the Moser parcel flows either north and/or west, and ultimately into the Hockanum River.  
Stormwater management practices include measures to ensure peak rates of runoff from the 
ultimate, developed conditions of both the 25.91-acre development parcel and the 15.5-acre 
portion of the 43 Lower Butcher Road parcel are below those of the existing parcel conditions.  
 
3. Hydrologic Analysis 

 
The design of the stormwater management systems for the proposed development is aimed at 
mitigating total peak rate of runoff and in treating stormwater runoff for the minimum-
recommended CT DEEP water quality volume or water quality flow.    
 
Hydrologic analysis was conducted for both the existing condition and the proposed developed 
condition of both the25.91-acre site and the 15.5-acre portion of the 43 Lower Butcher Road 
site to determine peak flow of runoff and total volume of runoff, under both conditions.  
Hydraflow Hydrographs 2007 computer software was utilized in the analysis.  The TR-55 
Method was used to determine peak flows and total volume of runoff for both the pre- and post-
redeveloped conditions.  For longer flow paths, times of concentration were calculated using 
the TR55 travel times methods provided in the Hydraflow software (i.e., Sheet flow, Shallow 
Concentrated Flow, and Open Channel Flow).  For watersheds with shorter flow paths and 
catchment areas that are characterized as mostly impervious, the times of concentrations 
calculated by the pipe-to-pipe analysis were used.    
 
Surficial Soil mapping indicates a variety of soils in and around the site.  These soils both fall 
under a variety of Hydrologic Soil Groups (See Attachment 1). 
 
SCS Curve Numbers for the various land-use types were based on the following values (per 
Table 2-2a, b and c of USDA Urban Hydrology for Small Watersheds  R-55):  
 

 CN=39  Open Space, good condition, Group A;  
 CN=61  Open Space, good condition, Group B; 
 CN=74  Open Space, good condition, Group C; 
 CN=30  Woods, good condition, Group A;  
 CN=55  Woods, good condition, Group B; 
 CN=70  Woods, good condition, Group D; 
 CN=98  Impervious areas (i.e. rooftops and paved areas)  

 
A Type III Storm Distribution (24-hour storm) with a shape factor of 484 and a one minute time 
interval was modeled.    Analysis was performed for the 2-, 5-, 10-, 25-and 50-year return period 
storm events, using the PDS-based point precipitation frequency estimates for the 6-hour and 



M

M

M

M
M
M

M

M
M
M

M
M
M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M
M
M

M

M
M
M

M
M
M

M

M

150' SHEET FLOW,
n=0.24, S=1.0%

TIME OF CONCENTRATION
FLOW PATH (TYPICAL)

WATERSHED
BOUNDARY
(TYPICAL)

922' SHALLOW  CONC.
FLOW,  UN-PAVED, S=0.80%

PARCEL BOUNDARY
(TYPICAL)

TIME OF CONCENTRATION
FLOW PATH (TYPICAL)

100' SHALLOW  CONC.
FLOW,  UN-PAVED, S=1.0%

TIME OF CONCENTRATION
FLOW PATH (TYPICAL)

300' CHANNEL FLOW,
UN-PAVED, S=0.7%

216' CHANNEL FLOW,
PAVED, S=1.0%

551'  CHANNEL FLOW , S=1.0%

TIME OF CONCENTRATION
FLOW PATH (TYPICAL)

150' SHEET FLOW,
n=0.24, S=1.0%

200' SHEET FLOW,
n=0.24, S=0.5%

508' SHALLOW  CONC.
FLOW,  UN-PAVED, S=11%

444' SHALLOW  CONC.
FLOW,  UN-PAVED, S=0.2%

434' SHALLOW  CONC.
FLOW,  UN-PAVED, S=0.5%

100' SHEET FLOW,
n=0.24, S=1.0%

100' SHEET FLOW,
n=0.24, S=1.0%

950' SHALLOW  CONC.
FLOW,  UN-PAVED, S=0.75%

DESIGN
POINT W

DESIGN
POINT N

SOIL CLASSIFICATIONS *:

12 - SCITICO, SHAKE, & MAYBID SOILS: D RATING
17 - TIMAKWA & NATCHAUG (0-2%): B/D RATING

33A - HARTFORD SANDY LOAM (0-3%): A RATING
33B - HARTFORD SANDY LOAM (3-8%): A RATING
37C - MANCHESTER GRAVELLY SANDY LOAM

 (3-15%): A RATING
  87B - WETHERSFIELD LOAM (3-8%): C RATING
102 - POOTATUCK FINE SANDY LOAM: A/D RATING
107 - LIMERICK AND LIM SOILS.: B/D RATING
306 - UDORTHENTS: B RATING

702A - TISBURY SILT LOAM, (0-3%): B/D RATING
704A - ENFIELD SILT LOAM, (0-3%): B RATING

W - WATER

* From Soil Web Survey.

Wetlands Delineations depicted are field delineated
by REMA Ecological Services in March 2023

= SOIL CLASSIFICATION
 AND DELINEATION

WATERSHED BOUNDARY
(TYPICAL)

AREA TYPE LEGEND
Symbol Type

 
Impervious  Surface

Landscaping   

Wooded

FLOW TO PARCEL
BOUNDARY THEN TO
HOCKANUM RIVER

HOCKANUM

RIVER

FLOW TO NORTH,
THEN TO HOCKANUM
RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
GG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W 

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
37C

AutoCAD SHX Text
37C

AutoCAD SHX Text
37C

AutoCAD SHX Text
37C

AutoCAD SHX Text
37C

AutoCAD SHX Text
37C

AutoCAD SHX Text
37C

AutoCAD SHX Text
33A

AutoCAD SHX Text
33A

AutoCAD SHX Text
33A

AutoCAD SHX Text
33A

AutoCAD SHX Text
33A

AutoCAD SHX Text
33A

AutoCAD SHX Text
704A

AutoCAD SHX Text
702A

AutoCAD SHX Text
704A

AutoCAD SHX Text
702A

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
20A

AutoCAD SHX Text
306

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
33B

AutoCAD SHX Text
33B

AutoCAD SHX Text
33B

AutoCAD SHX Text
33B

AutoCAD SHX Text
704A

AutoCAD SHX Text
87B

AutoCAD SHX Text
87B

AutoCAD SHX Text
87B

AutoCAD SHX Text
306

AutoCAD SHX Text
306

AutoCAD SHX Text
306

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER  BUTCHER  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST ROAD (RTE 83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULVERT INLET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DA-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
F. A. Hesketh    Associates, Inc.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 Creamery Brook, East Granby, CT 06026

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phone  (860) 653-8000   Fax  (860) 844-8600

AutoCAD SHX Text
 Planners     Landscape Architects

AutoCAD SHX Text
Civil     Traffic Engineers     Surveyors 

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.fahesketh.com   mail@fahesketh.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
50 WEST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRT

AutoCAD SHX Text
23104

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job no:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet no:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE ANALYSIS - EXISTING CONDITIONS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS-SITE WEST (EX.) A: 12.70 Ac. CN: 49 Tc: 36.8 Min.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS-SITE NORTH (EX.) EAST A: 17.55 Ac. CN: 60 Tc: 42.0 Min.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS-CT DOT (EX.) 13.69 Ac. CN: 69 Tc: 46.1 Min.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS-MOSER-WEST (EX.) A: 10.38 Ac. CN: 60 Tc: 30.1 Min.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS-MOSER-NORTH (EX.) A: 3.32 Ac. CN: 42 Tc: 25.1  Mins.

AutoCAD SHX Text
02-02-2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIFTY (50) WEST ROAD, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATURAL COUNTRY FARMS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOSER PARCEL 43 LOWER  BUTCHER RD



M

M

M

M
M
M

M

M
M
M

M
M
M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M
M
M

M

M
M
M

M
M
M

M

M

WETLANDS 
UPLANDS

WETLANDS 
UPLANDS

WETLANDS 
UPLANDS

WETLANDS 

UPLANDS

WETLANDS 
UPLANDS

DESIGN
POINT W

DESIGN
POINT N 150' SHEET FLOW,

n=0.24, S=0.5%

545' SHALLOW  CONC.
FLOW,  UN-PAVED, S=0.5%

216' CHANNEL FLOW,
PAVED, S=1.0%

551' CONC. SHALLOW  FLOW
PAVED, S=1.0%

TIME OF CONCENTRATION
FLOW PATH (TYPICAL)

SOIL CLASSIFICATIONS *:

12 - SCITICO, SHAKE, & MAYBID SOILS: D RATING
17 - TIMAKWA & NATCHAUG (0-2%): B/D RATING

33A - HARTFORD SANDY LOAM (0-3%): A RATING
33B - HARTFORD SANDY LOAM (3-8%): A RATING
37C - MANCHESTER GRAVELLY SANDY LOAM

 (3-15%): A RATING
  87B - WETHERSFIELD LOAM (3-8%): C RATING
102 - POOTATUCK FINE SANDY LOAM: A/D RATING
107 - LIMERICK AND LIM SOILS.: B/D RATING
306 - UDORTHENTS: B RATING

702A - TISBURY SILT LOAM, (0-3%): B/D RATING
704A - ENFIELD SILT LOAM, (0-3%): B RATING

W - WATER

* From Soil Web Survey.

Wetlands Delineations depicted are field delineated
by REMA Ecological Services in March 2023

= SOIL CLASSIFICATION
 AND DELINEATION

AREA TYPE LEGEND
Symbol Type

 
Impervious  Surface

Landscaping   

Wooded

Future Development
(60% Impervious)

   

HOCKANUM

RIVER

WATERSHED BOUNDARY
(TYPICAL)

100' SHEET FLOW,
n=0.15, S=0.2%

980' SHALLOW  CONC.
FLOW,  UN-PAVED, S=0.2%

BASIN OUTFLOW  TO
HOCKANUM RIVER

WATER QUALITY
BASIN #2

WATER
QUALITY
BASIN #2

FLOW TO NORTH,
THEN TO HOCKANUM
RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
GG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WG

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W 

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
37C

AutoCAD SHX Text
37C

AutoCAD SHX Text
37C

AutoCAD SHX Text
37C

AutoCAD SHX Text
37C

AutoCAD SHX Text
37C

AutoCAD SHX Text
37C

AutoCAD SHX Text
33A

AutoCAD SHX Text
33A

AutoCAD SHX Text
33A

AutoCAD SHX Text
33A

AutoCAD SHX Text
33A

AutoCAD SHX Text
33A

AutoCAD SHX Text
704A

AutoCAD SHX Text
702A

AutoCAD SHX Text
704A

AutoCAD SHX Text
702A

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
20A

AutoCAD SHX Text
306

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
33B

AutoCAD SHX Text
33B

AutoCAD SHX Text
33B

AutoCAD SHX Text
33B

AutoCAD SHX Text
704A

AutoCAD SHX Text
87B

AutoCAD SHX Text
87B

AutoCAD SHX Text
87B

AutoCAD SHX Text
306

AutoCAD SHX Text
306

AutoCAD SHX Text
306

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BUILDING #1 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BUILDING #2 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BUILDING #3 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BUILDING #4 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BUILDING #5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BUILDING #6 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BUILDING #7 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL STORAGE AREA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER  BUTCHER  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST ROAD (RTE 83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULVERT INLET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DA-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
F. A. Hesketh    Associates, Inc.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 Creamery Brook, East Granby, CT 06026

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phone  (860) 653-8000   Fax  (860) 844-8600

AutoCAD SHX Text
 Planners     Landscape Architects

AutoCAD SHX Text
Civil     Traffic Engineers     Surveyors 

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.fahesketh.com   mail@fahesketh.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
50 WEST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
02-02-2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRT

AutoCAD SHX Text
23104

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job no:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet no:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIFTY (50) WEST ROAD, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE ANALYSIS - PROPOSED CONDITIONS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS-SITE DETAINED (PR.) A: 20.81 Ac. CN: 77 Tc: 15 Min.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS-CT DOT (PR.) 14.00 Ac. CN: 70 Tc: 46.1 Min.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS-SITE UNDETAINED WEST (PR.) A: 5.06 Ac. CN: 62 Tc: 47.2 Min.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS-SITE-UNDETAINED  NORTH (PR.) A: 2.13 Ac. CN: 87 Tc: 10 Min.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS-MOSER-DETAINED (PR.) A: 15.57 Ac. CN: 88 Tc: 15 Min.

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATURAL COUNTRY FARMS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOSER PARCEL 43 LOWER  BUTCHER RD





   

 
Town of Ellington          
Planning Department 
          MEMO 
 
DATE:  March 19, 2024 
 
TO: Ellington Planning and Zoning Commission        
     
FROM: Barbra Galovich, Land Use Assistant     
 
RE:       Review of design elements for Fifty (50) West Road, LLC, owner/ applicant, to construct 

three buildings principally for contractor and tradesmen space with provisions for limited 
office, retail and wholesale space, fenced outside storage, parking, stormwater 
management system, access over a portion of 43 Lower Butcher Road, and related site 
improvements to the rear of 50 West Road within the Industrial (I) Zone, APN 019-005-
0000, a property zoned Industrial (I) and C (Commercial) Zones. 

 
 
At a meeting on March 8, 2024, the Design Review Board reviewed the above application and 
made the following motion: 

 
MOVED (HEMINWAY), SECONDED (CHAPLIN) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 
TO GRANT A POSITIVE REFERRAL TO THE PLANNING & ZONING 
COMMISSION to construct three buildings principally for contractor and 
tradesmen space with provisions for limited office, retail and wholesale space, 
fenced outside storage, parking, stormwater management system, access 
over a portion of 43 Lower Butcher Road, and related site improvements to the 
rear of 50 West Road within the Industrial (I) Zone, APN 019-005-0000, a 
property zoned Industrial (I) and C (Commercial) Zones, recommending some 
of the white plans shown on the plan be replaced with white spruce plantings 
 
 

Enclosed is a copy of the Design Review Board meeting minutes for reference. 

 

 



From: Dana Steele
To: John Colonese
Cc: Barbra Galovich
Subject: Wetland Application - 50 West Road
Date: Friday, March 8, 2024 5:33:30 PM
Attachments: image001.png

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

John,
 
I have reviewed the plans and drainage report for 50 West Road, LLC which includes an industrial
development with a stormwater basin and outlet pipe to the Hockanum River.  My comments
related to Inland Wetlands are as follows:
 

1.  The plans show the relocation of a walking path around the proposed outlet pipe and
headwall within a wetland area.  The walking trail should be relocated further from the
headwall (at least 10’) or a fence installed on the headwall to protect walkers from falling into
the riprap apron below.

2.  Provide contours and spot grades for the 12’ gravel access drive around the stormwater
basins on GR-2

3.  The maintenance schedule on GR-3 should include provisions for increasing frequency of
catch basin cleaning if sediment is less than 12” from any outlet pipe.  Also the schedule
should include procedures for dewatering the stormwater basins during maintenance without
adversely impacting wetland resources.

4.  The maintenance schedule notes a trash rack on the outlet structure but none is shown.  A
trash rack detail should be provided.

5.  The details on SD-1 call for intermediate riprap at the pipe outlets but the outlet protection
notes on EC-2 call for modified riprap.  The Engineer should provide justification for stone
size.

6.  Provide specifications for the wingwalls to the outlet structure shown on the plans.
7.  The plans should include a proposed easement over the Town’s property depicting the area of

maintenance responsibility for the development’s property owner.  The easement should be
in place prior to start of construction.

8.  An erosion bond should be provided prior to start of construction in an amount acceptable to
the Town Engineer.

 
These items could be conditions of approval.  Let me know if you have any questions.
 
Dana P. Steele, P.E.
Ellington Town Engineer
 

mailto:dsteele@jrrusso.com
mailto:jcolonese@ELLINGTON-CT.GOV
mailto:bgalovich@ELLINGTON-CT.GOV



 
J.R. RUSSO & ASSOCIATES, LLC
P.O. Box 938, 1 Shoham Road
East Windsor, CT 06088
(CT) 860.623.0569 (MA) 413.785.1158
dsteele@jrrusso.com | www.jrrusso.com
 

mailto:dsteele@jrrusso.com
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.jrrusso.com%2f&c=E,1,THW4NoT6bRJDcIQZPY2bFrRmkaIGa4cQdZ4-sU844dcRuD-azy4ytMhUdtilQ5tBKxGo_zFbVxmTbSgacgrZ0YA8q7bTSssfRw7fkj1u0-zf&typo=1














































 2024_02-26 Ellington Planning & Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 1 of 6  

STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT 06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

TEL. (860) 870-3120     TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE        FX (860) 870-3122 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2024, 7:00 PM 
N-PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT 

REMOTE ATTENDANCE: ZOOM VIDEO CONFERENCING 
(ATTENDEES BELOW WERE IN PERSON UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED) 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   CHAIRMAN ARLO HOFFMAN, VICE CHAIRMAN SEAN KELLY, 

SECRETARY ROBERT SANDBERG, JR. (VIA ZOOM), REGULAR 
MEMBERS WILLIAM HOGAN, F. MICHAEL FRANCIS, AND MICHAEL 
SWANSON  

MEMBERS ABSENT: REGULAR MEMBER JON MOSER AND ALTERNATES RACHEL 
DEARBORN AND JEREMIAH WILLIAMS 

STAFF PRESENT: LISA HOULIHAN, TOWN PLANNER AND BARBRA GALOVICH, 
RECORDING CLERK 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  Vice Chairman Sean Kelly called the meeting to order at 7:06 pm. 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS (On non-agenda items): None 
III. PUBLIC HEARING(S):  

BY CONSENSUS, THE COMMISSION WENT OUT OF THE AGENDA ORDER TO REVIEW ITEM 
2 OF THE PUBLIC HEARINGS. 

 
2.  Z202401– Paul Misbach, owner/applicant, pursuant to Section 3.1.3 of the Ellington Zoning 

Regulations request for Special Permit for the construction of a 30X40 accessory detached 
garage at 58 Pinney Road, APN 015-010-0000, in a Rural Agricultural Residential (RAR) Zone. 

 
Time: 7:07 pm 
Seated: Hoffman, Kelly, Sandberg, Hogan, Francis, and Swanson 
 
Paul Misbach, 58 Pinney Road, was present to represent the application.  Paul stated he plans 
to replace a rotted unsafe shed with a 30X40 detached building with a 10-foot lean-to for his 
personal items.  Vice Chairman Kelly asked if there would be any utilities installed. Paul noted no 
water will be installed but electricity could be installed in the future.  Commissioner Hogan asked 
what the color of the structure is, Paul noted it will be black and charcoal. Commissioner Hogan 
inquired about the large tree on the left of the property.  Paul replied no trees will be removed 
from the site and he would like to add more at some point. 
 
Karl and Caroyn Henkel, 2 Settlers Way, were present. Karl asked what the location of the 
structure will be, and Paul explained it will be located directly at the end of the driveway near the 
turnaround. The lean-to will be on the west side of the structure, and he intends on adding a 
downlit gooseneck style light on the side of the building that faces the road.  Caroyn asked if he 
would be running a business out of the garage.  Paul noted there will be no business, but he will 
be storing a boat, lawn mower, and tools in the garage. It was noted the structure will be at least 
22 feet from the side yard. 
 
 

http://www.ellington-ct.gov/


 2024_02-26 Ellington Planning & Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 6  

MOVED (HOGAN) SECONDED (SWANSON) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO CLOSE THE 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR Z202401 – Paul Misbach, owner/applicant, pursuant to Section 3.1.3 of 
the Ellington Zoning Regulations request for Special Permit for the construction of a 30X40 
accessory detached garage at 58 Pinney Road, APN 015-010-0000, in a Rural Agricultural 
Residential (RAR) Zone. 
 
MOVED (HOGAN) SECONDED (SWANSON) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO APPROVE 
WITH CONDITION(S) Z202401 – Paul Misbach, owner/applicant, pursuant to Section 3.1.3 of the 
Ellington Zoning Regulations request for Special Permit for the construction of a 30X40 accessory 
detached garage at 58 Pinney Road, APN 015-010-0000, in a Rural Agricultural Residential 
(RAR) Zone. 
 
CONDITION(S):  
Structure shall not be used for commercial operations or as an independent dwelling 
unless otherwise permitted by regulation and all applicable approvals have been obtained. 
 

BY CONSENSUS, THE COMMISSION RETURNED TO THE POSTED AGENDA ORDER. 
 

1. Z202328 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant, request for Special Permit and Site Plan 
Approval for two rear lots off Hawks Nest Trail, APN 004-002-0000, Rural Agricultural 
Residential (RAR) Zone. (Continued from January 29, 2024) 

 
Time: 7:19 pm  
Seated: Hoffman, Kelly, Sandberg, Hogan, Francis, and Swanson 
 
Stephen Williams, 36 Buff Cap Road, Tolland was present to represent the application.   
 
Lisa Houlihan read Dana Steele’s comments dated February 21, 2024, along with suggested 
conditions of approvals. Lisa noted some of the changes to the plans since the last meeting 
including a reduction in the proposed size of homes, shorter driveways, and much less tree 
cutting. Stephen apologized to the commission for the outburst at last month’s meeting and noted 
the plans have been revised to minimize any runoff from the property. 
 
Chairman Hoffman noted the conceptual plan is what was submitted with the application and 
asked if additional dwellings could be added to the parcel. Stephen stated only two lots were 
approved through the court judgment. 
 
Dennis Kupferschmid, 2 Hawk’s Nest Trail, raised concern about increased drainage with two 
more dwellings being constructed to the southwest of his property. Dennis asked about any 
drainage basins to be constructed on the parcel.  The existing basins in the area do clog up. Vice 
Chairman Kelly stated the construction of the drainage basin will be overseen by the applicant’s 
engineer.  The applicant’s engineer will also be required to provide a report confirming 
construction complies with the proposed plan.   
 
Stephen pointed out Item 6a from the Superior Court Judicial District of Tolland’s Stipulation to 
Judgement dated January 13, 2023, which stated, “The Gateses are not concealing any defects 
with the Hawk's Nest Trail Easement Area and have no current plans to repair the Hawk's Nest 
Trail Easement Area. Williams will not make any requests that the Gateses repair any existing 
conditions or problems with the Hawk's Nest Trail Easement Area. Mr. Williams has seen 
photographs and videos of heavy rainfall and is aware of the existing drainage problems in the 
Hawk's Nest Trail Easement Area and adjacent land during severe weather events.”  Chairman 
Hoffman reiterated that Stephen noted the drainage for the two lots is being addressed and 
improving the two lots will not add to the existing drainage problem within the area. 
 
 
 



 2024_02-26 Ellington Planning & Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 6  

 
 
 
Chairman Hoffman asked Stephen if he accepts the proposed conditions read earlier by the Town 
Planner.  Stephen acknowledged receipt of the proposed conditions of approval and his 
acceptance of them. 
 
MOVED (HOGAN) SECONDED (SWANSON) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO CLOSE THE 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR Z202328 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant, request for Special 
Permit and Site Plan Approval for two rear lots off Hawks Nest Trail, APN 004-002-0000, Rural 
Agricultural Residential (RAR) Zone. 
 
MOVED (HOGAN) SECONDED (SWANSON) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO APPROVE 
WITH CONDITIONS Z202328 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant, request for Special Permit 
and Site Plan Approval for two rear lots off Hawks Nest Trail, APN 004-002-0000, Rural 
Agricultural Residential (RAR) Zone. 
 
CONDITIONS:  
1. The development is subject to meeting the requirements of Ellington Zoning 

Regulations Section 9.6 Post Approval Requirements. 
2. Prior to the boundary survey being recorded on the land records, the ownership for 2 

Hawks Nest Trail shall be updated. 
3. The 50’ easement shall be assigned a new street name, as approved by town officials. 
4. The plans shall be revised to reflect the street name, the assessor parcel numbers, and 

house numbers prior to being recorded on the Ellington Land Records. 
5. The developer shall be responsible for the cost and installation of the street name sign.  

The street name sign is subject to approval by the Ellington Department of Public 
Works and shall be installed prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 

6. An agreement for the 50’ right-of-way and ingress/egress/utility easement defining 
provisions for ownership, maintenance, and other legalities recommended by the 
Ellington Town Attorney, shall be recorded on the Ellington Land Records. 

7. Property pins shall be installed prior to lot transfer or issuance of certificate of 
occupancy, whichever comes first. 

8. Special Permit and Site Plan Approval is based on plans C-1.2, C-1.1, C-1.0, SV.03 & 
SV.01 dated Dec 2023 and SV.02 dated Dec 2023, revised 1/31/24 and 2/1/2024, and 
Stormwater Management Memorandum issued February 1, 2024, prepared by Alfred 
Benesch & Company. Deviation to the site development plan that propose to increase 
impervious surface or change land cover may require the developer/property owner to 
revise to the Stormwater Management Memorandum and demonstrate to the town that 
onsite stormwater management facilities adequately manage the stormwater runoff 
and do not increase peak flows. 

9.   Specify the depth of soil mix on the detention basin detail (sheet   C-1.2). 
10.   Provide a dimensioned detail of the basin weir outlet and apron.  The weir should be 

designed to retain runoff to the top of the weir without drainage through the riprap 
voids. 

11.   Provide two temporary sediment traps, one for each lot upstream from the detention 
basin (infiltration Best Management Practices) to avoid clogging the detention basin 
during construction. Indicate the minimum storage capacity of each trap based on the 
watershed area in accordance with the CT Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Guidelines.  

12.   The Engineer shall observe the construction of the detention basin and shall provide 
a report confirming conformance with the design specifications and adequacy of the 
receiving soils for infiltration prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 

13.   The plans shall include a maintenance schedule for the detention basin to ensure the    
basin continues to drain between storm events. 

 
 



 2024_02-26 Ellington Planning & Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 6  

 
IV. OLD BUSINESS:   None 
 
V. NEW BUSINESS:   

1.  Pursuant to referral from the Board of Selectmen on February 12, 2024, request for Connecticut 
General Statute §8-24 review for purchase of 79 Kibbe Road as open space. 
 
Vice Chairman Kelly stated the commission is in receipt of an CGS §8-24 Referral from the Board 
of Selectmen requesting a positive referral for the acquisition of 79 Kibbe Road.  Vice Chairman 
Kelly noted the property was once accessible to the public as the main point of access in Ellington 
to the Shenipsit State Forest for recreation and emergency services.  Access to the property was 
blocked off in 2011 when ownership was taken over by the estate of the former owner.  Chairman 
Kelly mentioned the Town has been speaking with the property owner for some time now about 
regaining access.  Lisa stated the Town and the property owner are currently in negotiations.  
 
MOVED (HOGAN), SECONDED (FRANCIS) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO ISSUE A 
POSITIVE REFERRAL TO THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN FOR THE ACQUISITION OF LAND 
KNOWN AS 79 KIBBE ROAD, ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBER APN 142-002-0000, NOW OR 
FORMERLY OWNED BY SCOTT J. BRADY, TRUSTEE OF JAMES W. BRADY LIVING 
TRUST, CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 27 ACRES, PURSUANT TO CONNECTICUT 
GENERAL STATUTE SECTION 8-24. IN SO RECOMMENDING, THE COMMISSION FINDS 
THE ACQUISITION OF SAID PARCEL CONSISTENT WITH THE PLAN OF CONSERVATION 
AND DEVELOPMENT BY INCREASING THE AMOUNT OF OPEN SPACE IN TOWN AND 
PROTECTING LAND IDENTIFIED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AS HABITAT FOR ENDANGERED, THREATENED, 
AND/OR SPECIAL CONCERN SPECIES. 

 
2.   BY CONSENSUS, RECEIVED AND SCHEDULED A PUBLIC HEARING FOR MARCH 25, 

2024, 7PM, TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, AND ZOOM VIDEO 
CONFERENCING FOR Z202403 – West Meadow Associates, LLC, owner/applicant, request for 
Site Plan Approval to relocate and widen driveway access at 106 West Road, APN 028-011-0000, 
and create shared access with 100 West Road, APN 028-010-0000, in the Commercial (C) and 
Planned Commercial (PC) Zones. 

 
3.   BY CONSENSUS, RECEIVED AND SCHEDULED A PUBLIC HEARING FOR MARCH 25, 

2024, 7PM, TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, AND ZOOM VIDEO 
CONFERENCING FOR Z202404 – Fifty (50) West Road, LLC, owner/applicant, request for 
Special Permit Uses Pursuant to Zoning Regulations 4.1 and 4.1.1 as listed in Narrative dated 
February 22, 2024, and Site Plan Approval to construct three buildings, fenced outside storage, 
parking, stormwater management system, access over a portion of 43 Lower Butcher Road, and 
related site improvements to the rear of 50 West Road within the Industrial (I) Zone, APN 019-
005-0000, a property zoned Industrial (I) and C (Commercial) Zones. 

 
VI.   ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 

 
1. Approval of the January 29, 2024, Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
MOVED (SWANSON) SECONDED (FRANCIS) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO APPROVE 
JANUARY 29, 2024, REGULAR MEETING MINUTES AS WRITTEN. 

 
2.   Election of Officers. 
 

CHAIRMAN POSITION: 
 
MOVED (SWANSON) SECONDED (KELLY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO NOMINATE 
COMMISSIONER (HOFFMAN) FOR CHAIRMAN OF THE PLANNING & ZONING 



 2024_02-26 Ellington Planning & Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 5 of 6  

COMMISSION FOR THE YEAR OF 2024. COMMISSIONER (HOFFMAN) ACCEPTED THE 
NOMINATION.  
HEARING NO FURTHER NOMINATIONS, MOVED (KELLY) SECONDED (HOGAN) AND 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO ELECT COMMISSIONER (HOFFMAN) FOR CHAIRMAN OF 
THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION FOR THE YEAR OF 2024.  
  
VICE-CHAIRMAN POSITION: 
 
MOVED (SANDBERG) SECONDED (SWANSON) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 
NOMINATE COMMISSIONER (KELLY) FOR VICE-CHAIRMAN OF THE PLANNING & ZONING 
COMMISSION FOR THE YEAR OF 2024.  COMMISSIONER (KELLY) ACCEPTED THE 
NOMINATION. 
HEARING NO FURTHER NOMINATIONS, MOVED (SWANSON) SECONDED (HOGAN) AND 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO ELECT COMMISSIONER (KELLY) FOR VICE-CHAIRMAN OF 
THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION FOR THE YEAR OF 2024. 

  
SECRETARY POSITION: 
 
MOVED (KELLY) SECONDED (HOGAN) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO NOMINATE 
COMMISSIONER (SANDBERG) FOR SECRETARY OF THE PLANNING & ZONING 
COMMISSION FOR THE YEAR OF 2024. COMMISSIONER (SANDBERG) ACCEPTED THE 
NOMINATION.  
HEARING NO FURTHER NOMINATIONS, MOVED (SWANSON) SECONDED (HOGAN) AND 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO ELECT COMMISSIONER (SANDBERG) FOR SECRETARY OF 
THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION FOR THE YEAR OF 2024. 

 
3.  Correspondence/Discussion: 

a. Request from CRCOG seeking Regional Planning Commission appointments. 
 
BY CONSENSUS, THE COMMISSION APPOINTED JON MOSER TO SERVE AS 
PRIMARY REPRESENTATIVE AND MICHAEL SWANSON AS ALTERNATE 
REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE ELLINGTON PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ON 
THE CAPITOL REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS REGIONAL PLANNING 
COMMISSION THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2025. 
 

b. Pursuant to May 2023 discussion for Z202303, review plans for press box at field M2 Robert 
Tedford Memorial Park. 
 
Lisa Houlihan shared the new location of the press box at Tedford Memorial Park which will 
be moved from field M1 to field M2. Moving the announcer’s booth was suggested by 
neighbors and recommended by the commission during review of athletic lighting proposed 
in May of 2023 to address noise issues. 

 
c. Discuss status of commissioner training pursuant to PA 21-29. 

 
Barbra Galovich reported all the commissioners have completed the four-hour training 
required by PA 21-29.  A memo will be sent to the Board of Selectmen confirming 
commissioners’ completion of training.   

 
d. Ellington Parks & Recreation Help Shape Our Parks Survey and Master Plan Virtual Meeting 

for Tuesday, February 27, 2024. 
 

Vice Chairman Kelly noted there is a virtual meeting for the parks on Tuesday.  
 
 
 



 2024_02-26 Ellington Planning & Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 6 of 6  

 
 
 
 

e. Letter from CT Siting Council dated February 5, 2024, declaratory ruling not issued for Petition 
1589, USS Solar, 360 Somers Road, Ellington Airport. 

 
Commissioner Swanson noted this application was the first failed vote from the CT Siting 
Council. 

 
Chairman Hoffman stated the Road Runner recently installed new electronic fuel price signs without 
approval or permits.  John Colonese, Assistant Planner Enforcement Officer, will investigate the activity 
and issue enforcement. Secretary Sandberg requested the Planning & Zoning Commission be notified if 
application is submitted to the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
VIII.  ADJOURNMENT:   

 
MOVED (FRANCIS) SECONDED (SWANSON) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO ADJOURN 
THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING AT 8:07 PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
___________________________ 
Barbra Galovich, Recording Clerk 










	PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	MONDAY, MARCH 25, 2024, 7:00 PM
	1. Z202403 – West Meadow Associates, LLC, owner/applicant, request for Site Plan Approval to relocate and widen driveway access at 106 West Road, APN 028-011-0000, and create shared access with 100 West Road, APN 028-010-0000, in the Commercial (C) an...
	2. Z202404 – Fifty (50) West Road, LLC, owner/applicant, request for Special Permit Uses Pursuant to Zoning Regulations 4.1 and 4.1.1 as listed in Narrative dated February 22, 2024, and Site Plan Approval to construct three buildings, fenced outside s...
	IV. OLD BUSINESS:  None
	V.       NEW BUSINESS:
	VI. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS:
	VII.     ADJOURNMENT:
	Next Regular Meeting is scheduled for April 22, 2024.
	Binder1.pdf
	20240320135706190
	20240320135755732
	20240320135816232
	20240320135821313
	20240320135828149
	20240320135845884
	20240320135905486

	2024_02-26 PZC Minutes.pdf
	PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
	REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
	MONDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2024, 7:00 PM
	III. PUBLIC HEARING(S):
	BY CONSENSUS, THE COMMISSION WENT OUT OF THE AGENDA ORDER TO REVIEW ITEM 2 OF the public hearings.
	2.  Z202401– Paul Misbach, owner/applicant, pursuant to Section 3.1.3 of the Ellington Zoning Regulations request for Special Permit for the construction of a 30X40 accessory detached garage at 58 Pinney Road, APN 015-010-0000, in a Rural Agricultural...
	Time: 7:07 pm
	Seated: Hoffman, Kelly, Sandberg, Hogan, Francis, and Swanson
	Paul Misbach, 58 Pinney Road, was present to represent the application.  Paul stated he plans to replace a rotted unsafe shed with a 30X40 detached building with a 10-foot lean-to for his personal items.  Vice Chairman Kelly asked if there would be an...
	Karl and Caroyn Henkel, 2 Settlers Way, were present. Karl asked what the location of the structure will be, and Paul explained it will be located directly at the end of the driveway near the turnaround. The lean-to will be on the west side of the str...
	MOVED (HOGAN) SECONDED (SWANSON) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR Z202401 – Paul Misbach, owner/applicant, pursuant to Section 3.1.3 of the Ellington Zoning Regulations request for Special Permit for the construction of a 30X40 a...
	MOVED (HOGAN) SECONDED (SWANSON) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO APPROVE WITH CONDITION(S) Z202401 – Paul Misbach, owner/applicant, pursuant to Section 3.1.3 of the Ellington Zoning Regulations request for Special Permit for the construction of a 30X40 acce...
	CONDITION(S):
	Structure shall not be used for commercial operations or as an independent dwelling unless otherwise permitted by regulation and all applicable approvals have been obtained.
	BY CONSENSUS, THE COMMISSION RETURNED TO THE POSTED AGENDA ORDER.
	1. Z202328 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant, request for Special Permit and Site Plan Approval for two rear lots off Hawks Nest Trail, APN 004-002-0000, Rural Agricultural Residential (RAR) Zone. (Continued from January 29, 2024)
	Time: 7:19 pm
	Seated: Hoffman, Kelly, Sandberg, Hogan, Francis, and Swanson
	Stephen Williams, 36 Buff Cap Road, Tolland was present to represent the application.
	Lisa Houlihan read Dana Steele’s comments dated February 21, 2024, along with suggested conditions of approvals. Lisa noted some of the changes to the plans since the last meeting including a reduction in the proposed size of homes, shorter driveways,...
	Chairman Hoffman noted the conceptual plan is what was submitted with the application and asked if additional dwellings could be added to the parcel. Stephen stated only two lots were approved through the court judgment.
	Dennis Kupferschmid, 2 Hawk’s Nest Trail, raised concern about increased drainage with two more dwellings being constructed to the southwest of his property. Dennis asked about any drainage basins to be constructed on the parcel.  The existing basins ...
	Stephen pointed out Item 6a from the Superior Court Judicial District of Tolland’s Stipulation to Judgement dated January 13, 2023, which stated, “The Gateses are not concealing any defects with the Hawk's Nest Trail Easement Area and have no current ...
	Chairman Hoffman asked Stephen if he accepts the proposed conditions read earlier by the Town Planner.  Stephen acknowledged receipt of the proposed conditions of approval and his acceptance of them.
	MOVED (HOGAN) SECONDED (SWANSON) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR Z202328 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant, request for Special Permit and Site Plan Approval for two rear lots off Hawks Nest Trail, APN 004-002-0000, Rural A...
	MOVED (HOGAN) SECONDED (SWANSON) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS Z202328 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant, request for Special Permit and Site Plan Approval for two rear lots off Hawks Nest Trail, APN 004-002-0000, Rural Agricu...
	CONDITIONS:
	1. The development is subject to meeting the requirements of Ellington Zoning Regulations Section 9.6 Post Approval Requirements.
	2. Prior to the boundary survey being recorded on the land records, the ownership for 2 Hawks Nest Trail shall be updated.
	3. The 50’ easement shall be assigned a new street name, as approved by town officials.
	4. The plans shall be revised to reflect the street name, the assessor parcel numbers, and house numbers prior to being recorded on the Ellington Land Records.
	5. The developer shall be responsible for the cost and installation of the street name sign.  The street name sign is subject to approval by the Ellington Department of Public Works and shall be installed prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy.
	6. An agreement for the 50’ right-of-way and ingress/egress/utility easement defining provisions for ownership, maintenance, and other legalities recommended by the Ellington Town Attorney, shall be recorded on the Ellington Land Records.
	7. Property pins shall be installed prior to lot transfer or issuance of certificate of occupancy, whichever comes first.
	8. Special Permit and Site Plan Approval is based on plans C-1.2, C-1.1, C-1.0, SV.03 & SV.01 dated Dec 2023 and SV.02 dated Dec 2023, revised 1/31/24 and 2/1/2024, and Stormwater Management Memorandum issued February 1, 2024, prepared by Alfred Benes...
	9.   Specify the depth of soil mix on the detention basin detail (sheet   C-1.2).
	10.   Provide a dimensioned detail of the basin weir outlet and apron.  The weir should be designed to retain runoff to the top of the weir without drainage through the riprap voids.
	11.   Provide two temporary sediment traps, one for each lot upstream from the detention basin (infiltration Best Management Practices) to avoid clogging the detention basin during construction. Indicate the minimum storage capacity of each trap based...
	12.   The Engineer shall observe the construction of the detention basin and shall provide a report confirming conformance with the design specifications and adequacy of the receiving soils for infiltration prior to issuance of a certificate of occupa...
	13.   The plans shall include a maintenance schedule for the detention basin to ensure the    basin continues to drain between storm events.
	IV. OLD BUSINESS:   None
	V. NEW BUSINESS:
	1.  Pursuant to referral from the Board of Selectmen on February 12, 2024, request for Connecticut General Statute §8-24 review for purchase of 79 Kibbe Road as open space.
	Vice Chairman Kelly stated the commission is in receipt of an CGS §8-24 Referral from the Board of Selectmen requesting a positive referral for the acquisition of 79 Kibbe Road.  Vice Chairman Kelly noted the property was once accessible to the public...
	MOVED (HOGAN), SECONDED (FRANCIS) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO ISSUE A POSITIVE REFERRAL TO THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN FOR THE ACQUISITION OF LAND KNOWN AS 79 KIBBE ROAD, ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBER APN 142-002-0000, NOW OR FORMERLY OWNED BY SCOTT J. BRADY, TRUST...
	2.   BY CONSENSUS, RECEIVED AND SCHEDULED A PUBLIC HEARING FOR MARCH 25, 2024, 7PM, TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, AND ZOOM VIDEO CONFERENCING FOR Z202403 – West Meadow Associates, LLC, owner/applicant, request for Site Plan Approval to r...
	3.   BY CONSENSUS, RECEIVED AND SCHEDULED A PUBLIC HEARING FOR MARCH 25, 2024, 7PM, TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, AND ZOOM VIDEO CONFERENCING FOR Z202404 – Fifty (50) West Road, LLC, owner/applicant, request for Special Permit Uses Pursu...
	VI.   ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS:




